
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Bankston

AGENDA June 17, 2015

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Bankston

Minutes Recessed Meeting - May 27, 2015

Minutes Agenda Session - May 27, 2015

Minutes Regular Meeting - June 3, 2015

Report Criminal Court Clerk's Reports March and April  2015

Report Order of Designation Planning Commission - Todd Leamon June 8, 2015

Res. No. 615-17 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, the bonds and oaths
of notaries previously elected, and oaths of Deputy Sheriffs.

Res. No. 615-18 A Resolution authorizing the appointment and/or reappointment of representatives to the
Hamilton County Community Corrections Advisory Board.

Res. No. 615-19 A Resolution confirming the reappointment by the County Mayor of one member to the Hamilton
County Board of Electrical Examiners, term ending June 20, 2019.

Res. No. 615-20 A Resolution to amend the Schools Federal Projects Fund Budget by adding $146,240 to the FY
2014-2015 Revenue and Expenditure Budget; to amend the Self-funded Projects Fund Budget
by adding $3,031,840 to the FY 2014-2015 Revenue and Expenditure Budget; to amend the
General Purpose Fund Budget by adding $2,557,955 to the FY 2014-2015 Revenue and
Expenditure Budget.

Res. No. 615-21 A Resolution accepting the bid of Roll-Aid Industrial for appliances for East Brainerd Elementary
School amounting to $17,524.83 for the Department of Education and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 615-22 A Resolution accepting the bid of Visions of Video for televisions and wall mounts for East
Brainerd Elementary School amounting to $105,095.00 for the Department of Education and
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 615-23 A Resolution lifting the condition from Resolution 813-27B of previous zoning case number
2013-077 on property located at 8440 Providence Road.

Res. No. 615-24A A Resolution to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Residential District, properties
located at 8217 and 8219 Ooltewah Georgetown Road.

Res. No. 615-24B A Resolution to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Residential District, properties
located at 8217 and 8219 Ooltewah Georgetown Road.

Res. No. 615-25 Resolution Number Not Used

Res. No. 615-26 A Resolution granting a Special Permit for a Residential Planned Unit Development for
properties located at 8217 and 8219 Ooltewah-Georgetown Road.

Res. No. 615-26A A Resolution Granting a Special Permit for a Residential Planned Unit Development for
properties located at 8217 and 8219 Ooltewah-Georgetown Road.

Res. No. 615-27 A Resolution accepting the bid of Ford of Murfreesboro for one (1) 4x4 utility vehicle amounting
to $27,239.00 for Emergency Services and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 615-28 A Resolution accepting the proposal of ASI COBRA, LLC for COBRA Administration Services,
beginning July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2018, with the option to renew for three (3) additional
one (1) year periods, for the Human Resources Department and authorizing the County Mayor
to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.



Res. No. 615-29 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
sign a continuation contract with the Tennessee Department of Health in the amount of
$116,220.00 to provide Health Care Safety Net Primary Care services to uninsured adults in
Hamilton County at the Homeless Health Care Center for the time period July 1, 2015 through
June 30, 2016.

Res. No. 615-30 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
enter into and execute a continuation contract for $616,300.00 with the Tennessee Department
of Health for the provision of Bioterrorism Preparedness Activities for the 12 month time period
beginning July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2016 and to amend the Homeland Security and Homeland
State Security-State APPR budgets for FY 2016 by adding $79,300.00 to the revenue and
expenditure budget.

Res. No. 615-31 A Resolution to authorize the County Mayor to enter into and execute an agreement with
Thompson Engineering for GeoEnvironmental inspection necessary for construction of the Sale
Creek Volunteer Fire Hall Headquarters for an amount not to exceed $167,680.00 of previously
budgeted funds.

Res. No. 615-32 A Resolution to amend the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” so as to change the
roadway name for the following district road:  Winnepeg Court to Winnipeg Court.

Res. No. 615-33 A Resolution accepting the bid of J&J Contractors, Inc. for construction of the Dallas Bay Fire
Hall #2 renovations and additions amounting to $2,756,200 and authorizing the County Mayor to
sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 615-34 A Resolution ratifying the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for the period of May 1, 2015,
through May 31, 2015, and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 615-35 A Resolution adopting a budget for the fiscal year 2015-2016 and setting the tax levy for the year
2015 for Hamilton County, Tennessee.

Res. No. 615-36 A Resolution making appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations of Hamilton
County, Tennessee, for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016.

Res. No. 615-37 A Resolution to authorize the expenditure of six million two hundred fifty thousand dollars
($6,250,000), to complete Hamilton County's obligation to the Industrial Development Board of
Chattanooga for the expansion of the Volkswagen automobile assembly plant and to amend the
General Fund expenditure budget accordingly.

Res. No. 615-38 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to sign a grant agreement with a term ending June
30, 2016 with the Tennessee Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services and
amending the Recovery Court Fund by adding $425,000 to the revenue and expenditure
budgets.

Res. No. 615-39 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to execute a contract with a term of July 1, 2015 to
June 30, 2016 with Ms. Elaine Kelly to serve as Coordinator of the Hamilton County Recovery
Court Program.

Res. No. 615-40 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to execute a contract with a term of July 1, 2015 to
June 30, 2016 with Mr. Jeff S. Hill to serve as Case Manager for the Hamilton County Recovery
Court Program.

Res. No. 615-41 Resolution Number 615-41 Pulled

Res. No. 615-42 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to execute a contract with a term of July 1, 2015 to
June 30, 2016 with Mr. John Robert Cooper to serve as a Case Manager for the Hamilton
County Recovery Court Program.

Res. No. 615-43 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to submit a joint application with the City of
Chattanooga for a 2015 Justice Assistance Grant and approving the use of this grant by the
Hamilton County Sheriff's Office.



ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

May 27, 2015 
 
 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  May 27, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that this 27th day of May, 2015, an Agenda Preparation 

Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman, County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields.. Total present – 8.  Total 

absent -1. (Commissioner Haynes arrived during the reading of Resolution No. 615-16) 

 

Also in attendance were the County Mayor’s Chief of Staff Mike Compton, 

members of the administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County 

Auditor Bill McGriff.  

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

May 27, 2015 
 
 

 2

 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered as 

follows: 

 The Trustee’s Excess Fee Report and Monthly Report for April 2015 would be 
submitted for the record. 

 Debt Obligation Reports would be submitted for the record. 
 Resolution No. 615-1 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  

This required no committee assignment. 
 Resolution Nos. 615-2 through 615-15 were assigned to the Finance Committee, 

chaired by Commissioner Graham. 
 Resolution No. 615-16 was heard by a Committee of the Whole. 

 

 

Commissioner Graham, Chairman of the Finance Committee announced that the 

Finance Committee would be meeting in the Commission Room immediately after the 

Agenda Session. 

 

Chairman Fields stated that Resolution No. 615-16 would now be heard by the 

Committee of the Whole. 

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

May 27, 2015 
 
 

 3

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 615-16 

 

Todd Leamon, Administrator of Hamilton County Public Works and County 

Engineer spoke regarding this item, which would authorize the County Mayor to enter 

into and execute a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the River City Company 

relative to property owned by Hamilton County.  The County owns the Mayfield Annex 

building located at 123 East 7th Street and it is no longer suitable for the needs of 

County Government.  

 

The County has requested River City Company as their agent for purposes of 

redevelopment of the property which will include contracting for an appraisal, marketing 

of the Property, development and issuance of a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the 

sale of the property, review of responses to the RFP, and making recommendations to 

the County for the most appropriate redevelopment proposal. 

 

 Mr. Leamon noted that Jim Williamson, River City Company Vice President of 

Planning and Development and Paul Parker, Hamilton County Real Property Manager 

were also available for questions. The County will relocate the remaining office to the 

Frank Newell Tower building located at 117 East 7th Street.   

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

May 27, 2015 
 
 

 4

 Commissioner Boyd noted that selling the property creates additional property 

tax revenue.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Smedley’s question, Mr. Leamon clarified that all 

recommendations for the Mayfield Annex building will be brought back to the 

commission for approval.  

 

 Commissioner Graham stated his support for Resolution No. 615-16 and that the 

presence of Mr. Williamson and Mr. Parker at next week’s meeting was not necessary. 

  

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Bankston congratulated the Central High School Lady Purple 

Pounders and Ooltewah High School Owls for competing and placing in the softball 

state championship game. 

 

 Commissioner Graham reflected on Memorial Day and thanked those who have 

served our country. He and Commissioner Boyd attended the May 25th Memorial Day 

ceremony held at the Chattanooga National Cemetery.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

May 27, 2015 
 
 

 5

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Donna Horn, Chairman of Business and Community Relations Committee of the 

School Board, residing at 830 Windy Hill Drive Chattanooga, TN 37421, addressed the 

Commission. She discussed school security camera installations, a ceiling being 

repaired at Brainerd High school, and her desire to promote good relations between the 

School Board and the Commission.  

 

She provided copies of an itemized list detailing how the Ooltewah Elementary 

sale proceeds would be spent on security camera systems for Hamilton County schools. 

She also distributed copies of emails which stated that the camera installations began in 

January 2015 and the project is estimated to take ten months to complete. She stated 

that Mayor Coppinger had been furnished a listing of the installation schedule last fall.   

 

Commissioner Beck stated that he was the official who originally requested the 

camera installation list, and a response from the school system was never received. 

Commissioner Smedley questioned Mrs. Horn about an adversarial comment relating to 

the Commission she made to the media.  Ms. Horn denied making such a statement.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

May 27, 2015 
 
 

 6

Chairman Fields ask if others individuals were present who wished to address 

the Commission on subjects other than zoning.  

 

Hearing none, Chairman Fields declared the meeting adjourned until 

Wednesday, June 3rd at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved: 
           

__________  
Date     Clerk’s Initials 
 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MAY 27, 2015 
 

1 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  May 27, 2015 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 27th day of May, 2015, a Recessed Meeting 

of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

 Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman, County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields. Commissioner Haynes was 

absent. Total present – 8.  Total absent -1.   

 

Chairman Fields reported that Commissioner Haynes would be arriving later 

during the Agenda Session. 

 

 Also in attendance were the County Mayor’s Chief of Staff Mike Compton 

members of the administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MAY 27, 2015 
 

2 
 

Auditor Bill McGriff.  (It was reported that Mayor Coppinger was attending a news 

conference at the Volkswagen facility). 

 

 Commissioner Graham introduced Pastor Chris Peponis, Fellowship Baptist 

Church, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Graham led in the pledge to the flag. 

 

 Chairman Fields announced that there was not any scheduled business for the 

Recessed Meeting and asked if anyone had any announcements. 

 

 Being no further business Chairman Fields declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

     Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
 
      
     _______________________________ 
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

 
Approved: 
 
 
______ 
Date  Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2015 
 

1 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  June 3, 2015 
 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 3rd day of June, 2015, a Regular Meeting of 

the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the Courthouse, 

in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the following 

proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, 

Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields. Commissioners Boyd and Mackey were 

absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. 

 

Chairman Fields reported that Commissioner Boyd and Commissioner Mackey 

were absent. Commissioner Mackey was attending the annual Tennessee County 

Services Association Post Legislative Conference.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2015 
 

2 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, Assistant County Attorney Neil Southerland, and County Auditor Bill 

McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 

Commissioner Bankston gave the invocation and led in the pledge to the flag.  

Pastor Mark Harwood, Flat Top Independent Church, was unable to attend due to 

caring for his injured father who recently fell.  

 

PRESENTATION- CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION – THOMAS “SKIP” FINLEY 

 

Commissioner Beck presented a Certificate of Appreciation to Thomas “Skip” 

Finley in recognition of his 30 years of dedicated service to Hamilton County and its 

citizens. Mr. Finley served 23 years in the Hamilton County Sheriff’s Office and 7 years 

at Walden Security Company. He was praised for his professionalism, fair, and friendly 

approach as part of the security program at the Hamilton County Courthouse. 

 

 Mayor Coppinger commended Mr. Finley for his steadfast dedication to Hamilton 

County and thanked him for his many years of service. 

  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2015 
 

3 

 

Mr. Finley thanked the Commission for receiving the honor. He was personally 

congratulated by and shook hands with the Mayor and Commissioners. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, 

that the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of May 13, 2015, the Agenda Preparation 

Session of May 13, 2015, and the Regular Meeting of May 20, 2015, be approved, treat 

same as read, made a matter of record and filed.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  

 

The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd and Commissioner 

Mackey were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7. Total 

“Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2015 
 

4 

 

TRUSTEE’S EXCESS FEE REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s excess fee report for April 2015 was submitted and made a matter 

of record.  

 

TRUSTEE’S MONTHLY REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s monthly report for April 2015 was submitted and made a matter of 

record.  

 

REPORTS ON DEBT OBLIGATION  

 

Reports on Debt Obligation for Series 2015A General Obligation Bonds and 

Series 2015B General Obligation Refunding Bonds were submitted for the record at this 

time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 615-1  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, AND THE BOND AND OATH 

OF NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, to 

adopt Resolution No. 615-1.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2015 
 

5 

 

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd and Commissioner 

Mackey were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7. Total 

“Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolution No. 615-16 be considered at this time. He 

reported it was heard by the Committee of the Whole. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 615-16  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE A "MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING" WITH 

THE RIVERCITY COMPANY RELATIVE TO PROPERTY OWNED BY HAMILTON 

COUNTY. 

  

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, 

to adopt Resolution No. 615-16.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2015 
 

6 

 

Chairman Fields questioned whether the law required that a licensed real estate 

broker be involved in this effort.  Attorney Southerland indicated that was her 

understanding of the law.  Chairman Fields questioned whether River City Company 

had a broker on staff.  As the answer wasn’t readily available, Mayor Coppinger 

indicated the resolution wasn’t time sensitive and he had no objection to postponing it to 

next week’s recessed meeting. 

 

County Engineer Todd Leamon pointed out the marketing plan would be 

developed by River City Company but the sale of the property would be handled by the 

County’s Real Property Division. 

 

In response to Chairman Fields concerns, Commissioner Haynes withdrew his 

motion and Commissioner Fairbanks withdrew his second. Chairman Fields suggested 

this item be brought back to the Commission at the June 10th recessed meeting. 

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolution Nos. 615-2 through 615-15 be considered 

together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 615-2  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF SAITECH, INC. 

FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW 

FOR ONE (1) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR TERM, BEGINNING JUNE 3, 2015 

THROUGH JUNE 2, 2016, FOR DELL LATITUDE 14 RUGGED LAPTOP 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2015 
 

7 

 

COMPUTERS AMOUNTING TO $2,420.43 EACH FOR THE SHERIFF’S 

DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 615-3  A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT AMONG THE CITY OF RIDGESIDE, THE COUNTY TRUSTEE, AND 

HAMILTON COUNTY RELATIVE TO THE COLLECTION OF THE CITY OF 

RIDGESIDE SANITATION FEES. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 615-4  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL CONTRACT 

RENEWAL WITH SUN LIFE FINANCIAL FOR REINSURANCE FOR THE COUNTY’S 

GROUP MEDICAL PLAN AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 615-5  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN A $49,425 AGREEMENT WITH BARGE WAGGONER SUMNER AND 

CANNON, INC. FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO CREATE A MOBILE DEVICE 

APP FOR INTERACTIVE DISPLAYS ON THE NEW EXTENSION OF THE 

TENNESSEE RIVERWALK. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 615-6  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF SHIELDS 

ELECTRONIC SUPPLY, INC. AND ACCREDITED LOCK SUPPLY COMPANY FOR 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2015 
 

8 

 

CONTRACT UNIT PRICING FOR DOOR ACCESS MATERIALS FOR THE PERIOD 

OF JUNE 5, 2015, THROUGH JUNE 4, 2016, FOR THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 615-7  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE QUOTATION FROM 

SPORTS, PLAY, AND ACTIVE RECREATION FOR KIDS (SPARK) FOR THE 

PURCHASE OF SPARK PE INSTRUCTIONAL CURRICULUM PACKETS FOR THE 

STEP ONE PROGRAM TO BE USED BY HAMILTON COUNTY SCHOOLS 

AMOUNTING TO $17,118.60 FOR THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY 

HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 615-8  A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF 

GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE PERIOD OF APRIL 1, 2015, THROUGH 

APRIL 30, 2015, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 615-9  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF SAITECH, INC. 

FOR A ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT, BEGINNING JUNE 3, 2015 THROUGH JUNE 2, 

2016, WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR ONE (1) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR 

TERM, FOR HP PRINTERS FOR THE INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2015 
 

9 

 

DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 615-10  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF SOUTHERN 

ATHLETIC FIELDS, INC. FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING 

JUNE 3, 2015, THROUGH JUNE 2, 2016, WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR ONE 

(1) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR TERM, FOR INFIELD CLAY MIX FOR THE 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 615-11  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN A CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $188,799.05 WITH THE TENNESSEE 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY COURTS 

COMMUNITY SERVICE PROGRAM WITH A CONTRACT PERIOD BEGINNING JULY 

01, 2015 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2016. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 615-12  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE QUALIFICATIONS 

AND FEE SCHEDULE OF AMEC ENVIRONMENTAL & INFRASTRUCTURE INC., 

GEOSERVICES, LLC, K.S. WARE & ASSOCIATES LLC, MARION 

ENVIRONMENTAL, INC., MC2 ENGINEERS, MORELAND ALTOBELLI 

ASSOCIATES, INC., PDM ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, LLC, S&ME, INC., 

STANTEC, TERRACON, AND THOMPSON ENGINEERING, FOR ONE (1) YEAR 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2015 
 

10 

 

CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING JULY 3, 2015 THROUGH JULY 2, 2016, FOR 

GEOENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 615-13  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF J&J 

CONTRACTORS, INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE TRI-COMMUNITY 

VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT STATION 3 AMOUNTING TO $2,833,700 AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 615-14  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY TO EXECUTE AND CREATE A STREAM AND 

WETLANDS CONSERVATION EASEMENT UPON PROPERTY JOINTLY-OWNED 

BY HAMILTON COUNTY AND THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA, DESIGNATING 

HAMILTON COUNTY PARKS AND RECREATION AS THE HOLDER OF SAID 

EASEMENT LOCATED WITHIN THE ENTERPRISE SOUTH INDUSTRIAL PARK. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 615-15  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF NABCO 

ELECTRIC FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE HIXSON PIKE AND THRASHER 

PIKE INTERSECTION SIGNALIZATION FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2015 
 

11 

 

$150,666.35 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

Commissioner Graham requested that Resolution No. 615-13 be considered 

separately and gave the floor to Commissioner Smedley. She spoke regarding this 

resolution which accepted the bid of J & J Contractors, Inc. for construction of the Tri-

Community Volunteer Fire Department Station 3. She introduced Fire Chief Duane Pitts 

and thanked him for his service to the community.  

 

Mayor Coppinger spoke very highly of Fire Chief Pitts and reflected on the many 

years they have worked together. 

 

In closing, Commissioner Graham noted the bid came in $25,000 less than 

expected. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Smedley, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 615-13. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2015 
 

12 

 

and Commissioner Mackey were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total 

“Aye” votes – 7. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolution Nos. 615-2 through 

615-12, 615-14, and 615-15 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and 

recommended approval.  

 

In response to Commissioner Haynes concerns regarding Resolution No. 615-

15, Todd Leamon, Public Works Administrator reported that it would take four to six 

months to complete the construction of the Hixson Pike and Thrasher Pike traffic 

intersection signalization. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 615-2 through 615-12, 615-14, and 615-15. The foregoing 

Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members 

of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner 

Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, 

“Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd and Commissioner Mackey 

were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2015 
 

13 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

  

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission. 

 

 Commissioner Graham and Commissioner Haynes thanked Mayor Coppinger for 

the informative public budget workshop that took place yesterday June 2nd at 9 a.m. in 

the McDaniel Building.  

 

 Commissioner Haynes stated officials broke ground on the new Ganns Middle 

Valley Elementary on June 1st and thanked everyone who participated. He noted Friday 

June 5th is Ronald McDonald House Charities (RMHC) Day of Change fundraising 

event. He encouraged everyone to support RMHC and drop spare change off at all 

participating McDonald’s restaurants. 

 

 Mayor Coppinger publicly congratulated Andy Vernetti, a rising senior at Signal 

Mountain Middle High School for earning a top composite score of 36 on a recent ACT 

test.  

 

  After being recognized for announcements Mayor Coppinger presented the 

County Budget for 2015-16. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2015 
 

14 

 

 He began by thanking members of the staff and administrators for their hard work 

and assistance in putting together a budget for fiscal year 2015-2016. He expressed his 

appreciation to the Commission for their input during this process. He thanked everyone 

who attended the June 2nd budget workshop at the McDaniel Building. It was noted that 

the proposed budget was available for viewing on the Hamilton County website. 

 

  He presented the budget in detail stating that it was a balanced $664.4 million 

budget, and his fifth consecutive budget with no property tax increase. The proposed 

budget is $21 million larger than the 2014 – 2015 fiscal year budget, which represents a 

3.3 percent increase. The majority of the increase is due to the addition of the Hamilton 

County Sheriff’s Office and the Juvenile Court Clerk’s office into the general fund. The 

offices were included in the general fund to make accounting more efficient. Other 

contributing factors include unexpected boosts in state funding to the county school 

system and grant funds brought in to the county.  

 

 Mayor Coppinger noted that 61 percent of county spending is going to the school 

system, an increase of $6.5 million or 1.6 percent when compared to last year’s budget. 

The school system will receive $405,685,000. The school system also received a $3.4 

million increase in the state Basic Education Planning (BEP) funds.  

  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2015 
 

15 

 

Across the board employee raises of 1.5 percent are included in the budget. 

Employees currently earning less than $50,000 will receive a minimum raise of $750. 

Cost of raises, including associated employee benefits is $1.5 million.  

  

Additional topics discussed were increases in revenues, increases in 

expenditures, decrease in health insurance costs, increase in debt service payments, 

and changes in the general fund balance, the general fund capital outlay items 

budgeted for and the unexpected major capital items that are not included in the annual 

capital outlay budget.  Total capital outlay for the Sheriff’s Department is $1,548,000.  

  

The Sheriff’s Department is up $688,000 to $31,592,000. The increase is mainly 

due to the 1.5 percent across the board employee pay raise. Three employees are 

being added to the community corrections department to assist with the Community 

Corrections Misdemeanor program. The budget does not include funds for the Bridge 

Retirement Plan sought by Sheriff Jim Hammond.  

 

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2015 
 

16 

 

DELEGATIONS 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Kay Keefe, Owner of Keefe Plumbing residing at 1820 E. 23rd Street 

Chattanooga, TN 37404, Gary Ball , residing at 2520 E. 14th Street Chattanooga, TN 

37404, and Gene Shipley residing at 11668 Walker Road Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 

addressed the commission regarding plumbing contractors and the unfair treatment 

they are experiencing with the Water and Wastewater Treatment Authority (WWTA). 

Out of 27 plumbers, who started working with WWTA, there are only eight remaining. It 

was noted that WWTA is months behind on paying, and the plumbers have been 

operating without a contract since October 31, 2010.  

 

Mr. Shipley pointed out that WWTA charges keep going up and the usage fee is 

now higher than the water bill. He estimated that WWTA has taken in $12.5 million over 

the past five years. Copies of the unpaid invoices and expired contracts were handed 

out. Five other plumbing contractors were present in today’s audience, Norman Judd, 

Best Plumbing & Heating Company, Inc., Tommy Reese, Reese Plumbing, John Alier, 

Southeast Total Services, and Roger Milner, America’s Plumbing. 

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2015 
 

17 

 

Carolyn Longphre residing at 5011 Sawyer Road Signal Mountain, TN 37377 

addressed the commission about the uninhabitable conditions at the Humane Education 

Society (HES) Education Humane Society. She encouraged the commission to consider 

closing HES doors and teaming up with McKamey Animal shelter. 

  

There being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting in recess 

until Wednesday, June 10, 2015 at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

 

 

      Respectfully submitted: 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
 
   

________  
Date  Clerk’s Initials 
 









No. 615-17 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 
NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, AND OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS. 

   
 
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
“HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS,  said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE 
OF THE COUNTY CLERK” have given approved bonds for the office of 
Notary Public and have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS” have taken the oath of office. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled “HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
2.  That the persons listed on the “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE 

 COUNTY CLERK” relative to bonds given for the position of Notary Public are 
 hereby approved for such and the bonds are accepted and the oaths therefor are 
 approved as taken; and 



 

 

 
3. That the persons named on the listing labeled “OATHS OF DEPUTY 

SHERIFFS” are accepted and the oaths therefor are approved as taken; and  
 

 4. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 
is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 



























No. 615-18 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPOINTMENT AND/OR  
REAPPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVES TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY 
COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS ADVISORY BOARD 
 

WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Community Corrections Program is a valuable program that 
provides a sentencing alternative for non-violent offenders; and, 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to T.C.A. 40-36-201 et seq., in order to qualify for state funding under the 

    program administered by the Tennessee Department of Corrections, a Community 
   Corrections Advisory Board must be established; and, 

    
WHEREAS, each representative hereby reappointed to the board shall serve a two-year term 

beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS,     Sam Blakemore hereby appointed to the board shall serve a three-year term  
                         beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2018; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY  
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

 
   The following individuals are hereby appointed and/or reappointed  to the Hamilton  

                  County Community Corrections Advisory Board: 
 

            REPRESENTATIVE   NOMINATED BY 
Terry Steele                         District Director, Board of Probation and Paroles 
Mary K. Roberts              County Mayor, Sheriff, District Attorney General 
Sam Blakemore                County Mayor, Sheriff, District Attorney General 
Bill Tittle                                            County Mayor, Sheriff, District Attorney General 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT AT AND 
FROM ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 













No. 615-19 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT BY THE COUNTY 
MAYOR OF ONE MEMBER TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF 
ELECTRICAL EXAMINERS, TERM ENDING JUNE 20, 2019. 
 
WHEREAS,  pursuant to County Council Resolution of February 16, 1972, as 

amended by Resolution of October 4, 1972, members of the Hamilton 
County Board of Electrical Examiners are appointed by the County 
Mayor and confirmed by the Board of County Commissioners; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  the County Mayor has reappointed Gary Neil  (Electrical Contractor) for 

a term of four years, beginning June 20, 2015 and ending June 20, 2019.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the reappointment of Gary Neil to the County Board of Electrical Examiners is hereby 
confirmed for the term as noted above. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 



Gary W. Neil 
10802 Ooltewah Georgetown Road 

Georgetown, TN 37336 
423-344-6422 

 
 
Employment History   
 
2009-to date Young Electric 
 Electrician 
 
1993-2009 Grant-Neil Electric, Inc. 
 Co-Owner 
 
1985-1993 Neil Electric, Inc. 
 Owner 
 
Education 
 
1976 Red Bank High School 
 
1977-1978 Electrical Diploma – Chattanooga State Community College 
 
1979-1982 4 year electrical apprenticeship program, IBEW 
 
1986 Hamilton County Class 1 and City of Chattanooga Class 1 
 Electrical Contractors License 
 
1990 State of Tennessee Electrical Contractors License 
 
Personal Information 
 Resident of Chattanooga since 1969 
 Married 35 years 
 Two children 
 Member of Bayside Baptist Church 



No. 615-20 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE SCHOOLS FEDERAL PROJECTS FUND BUDGET 
BY ADDING $146,420 TO THE FY 2014-2015 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE 
BUDGET; TO AMEND THE SELF-FUNDED PROJECTS FUND BUDGET BY ADDING 
$3,031,840 TO THE FY 2014-2015 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE BUDGET; TO 
AMEND THE GENERAL PURPOSE FUND BUDGET BY ADDING $2,557,955 TO THE 
FY 2014-2015 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE BUDGET.  
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Board of Education has a reduction in carryover funds of 

($93,040) and was awarded additional revenue of $239,460 from various state 
and federal agencies, and desires to use it for the designated purposes; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Board of Education must seek approval of a self-funded 

budget amendment appropriating fund balance of $54,625 and setting forth 
additional revenue from various non-federal agencies or donations totaling 
$2,977,215; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Board of Education must seek approval of a general 

purpose operating budget amendment appropriating fund balance of $597,376 
and setting forth additional revenue of $1,960,579; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Board of Education must seek approval of budget 

amendment setting forth additional revenue and expenses and transfers of 
expenditures from one category to another; and, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the County School’s Federal Projects Fund be hereby amended by adding $146,420 for 
the following items: 
           
 



Source of Funds                                                               Amount 
Federal Thru State         $      146,420           
                     
Use of Funds 
Regular Instruction                                                                                          $        210,238 
Special Education Instruction 6,356 
Vocational Instruction 21,189 
Other Student Support (50,971) 
Regular Instruction Support (86,607) 
Special Education Support 81,374 
Vocational Support  (9,000) 
Transportation                               (18,461) 
Community Services 504 
Indirect Costs                                                      (8,202)  
Total                                                              $       146,420 
 
 
That the county school self-funded projects fund be hereby amended by adding $3,031,840 for 
the following items: 
 
Source of Funds 
Investments $           2,125 
Restricted for Education Fund Balance             54,625 
Charges for Current Services          170,000  
Other Local Revenues       2,805,090 
Total             $    3,031,840  
 
Use of Funds 
Regular Instruction             $       606,023 
Special Education Instruction          224,625 
Vocational Instruction               3,955 
Other Student Support            15,217 
Regular Instruction Support              22,899 
Board of Education          205,545 
Operation of Plant       1,951,000 
Transportation  1,500 
Community Services              1,076 
Total                                             $    3,031,840 
 
 
 
 



 

 

That the county general purpose school fund be hereby amended by adding $2,557,955 for the 
following items: 
 
Source of Funds 
Committed for Education Fund Balance  $      305,400 
Unassigned Fund Balance          291,976 
Current Property Tax          800,000 
Other Local Revenues       1,960,579 
Basic Education Program        (800,000) 
Total  $   2,557,955 
 
Use of Funds  
Regular Instruction  $   2,345,179 
Special Education Instruction        (407,212) 
Vocational Education Instruction            50,099 
Attendance                                                                                                                 (25,105) 
Other Student Support                      (12,884)
 Regular Instruction Support                                                                                        73,063 
Special Education Support             3,958 
Vocational Education Support             4,000 
Board of Education            (2,350) 
Director of Schools            (4,854) 
Office of Principal        (241,480) 
Fiscal Services                                                                                                             32,329 
Human Resources Services              6,337 
Operation of Plant                     786,492 
Central and Other       (49,617)  
Total  $   2,557,955 
    
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 















No. 615-21 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF ROLL-AID INDUSTRIAL FOR 
APPLIANCES FOR EAST BRAINERD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL AMOUNTING TO 
$17,524.83 FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND AUTHORIZING THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
  
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for appliances for East 

Brainerd Elementary School for the Department of Education; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Roll-Aid Industrial amounting to $17,524.83 was considered to 

be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Roll-Aid Industrial for appliances for East Brainerd Elementary School 
amounting to $17,524.83 for the Department of Education is hereby accepted, said bid being 
the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts 
necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 





























No. 615-22 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF VISIONS OF VIDEO FOR TELEVISIONS 
AND WALL MOUNTS FOR EAST BRAINERD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL AMOUNTING 
TO $105,095.00 FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND AUTHORIZING THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for a total of (73) 70” 

LED LCD smart televisions, (10) 40” LED LCD televisions, (81) wall 
mounting brackets and (2) mobile TV carts for East Brainerd Elementary 
School for the  Department of Education; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Visions of Video for televisions and wall mounts amounting to 

$105,095.00 was considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Visions of Video for televisions and wall mounts amounting to $105,095.00 for 
East Brainerd Elementary School for the Department of Education is hereby accepted, said bid 
being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any 
contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 































No. 615-23 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                   (P.C. NO. 2015-066) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION LIFTING THE CONDITION FROM 
RESOLUTION 813-27B OF PREVIOUS ZONING CASE 

NUMBER 2013-077 ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 8440 
PROVIDENCE ROAD 

 
 
 WHEREAS, MAP Engineers c/o Mike Price & Hampton Meadows, LLC         
petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to Lift 
the Condition from Resolution 813-27B of previous Zoning Case Number 2013-077 on 
property located at 8440 Providence Road, and said Planning Commission after 
hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, MAP Engineers c/o Mike Price & Hampton Meadows, LLC                                    
requested that the County Commission consider said petition and notice has been 
published in a newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that the County 
Commission will hold a public hearing on June 17, 2015, concerning the passage of 
this Resolution as required by law, and such having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended Lifting the Condition from Resolution 813-27B of previous Zoning Case 
Number 2013-077 on property located at 8440 Providence Road.  An unplatted tract 
of land located at 8440 Providence Road, being the property described in Deed Book 
10305, Page 922, ROHC.  Tax Map 114-003 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 















No. 615- 24A 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
                             (P.C. NO. 2015-068) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT TO R-1 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTIES 

LOCATED AT 8217 AND 8219 OOLTEWAH 
GEORGETOWN ROAD 

 
 
 WHEREAS, MAP Engineers, Spring Creek Investments & Kinsman & Cheryl 
Wright petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission 
to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Residential District, properties located at 
8217 and 8219 Ooltewah Georgetown Road, and said Planning Commission after 
hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, MAP Engineers, Spring Creek Investments & Kinsman & Cheryl 
Wright requested that the County Commission consider said petition and notice has 
been published in a newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that the 
County Commission will hold a public hearing on June 17, 2015, concerning the 
passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Residential District, 
properties located at 8217 and 8219 Ooltewah Georgetown Road. Two unplatted 
tracts of land located at 8217 and 8219 Ooltewah Georgetown Road, being the 
properties described in Deed Book 4056, Page 906, ROHC. Tax Maps 104-087 and 
104-087.01 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 



 

 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 















No. 615- 24B

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

June 17, 2015 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

(P.C. NO. 2015-068) 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT TO R-1 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTIES 

LOCATED AT 8217 AND 8219 OOLTEWAH 
GEORGETOWN ROAD 

WHEREAS, MAP Engineers, Spring Creek Investments & Kinsman & Cheryl 
Wright petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission 
to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Residential District, properties located at 
8217 and 8219 Ooltewah Georgetown Road, and said Planning Commission after 
hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 

WHEREAS, MAP Engineers, Spring Creek Investments & Kinsman & Cheryl 
Wright requested that the County Commission consider said petition and notice has 
been published in a newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that the 
County Commission will hold a public hearing on June 17, 2015, concerning the 
passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such having been held. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Residential District, 
properties located at 8217 and 8219 Ooltewah Georgetown Road, subject to the 
overall density not to exceed 3 dwellings per acre.  Two unplatted tracts of land 
located at 8217 and 8219 Ooltewah Georgetown Road, being the properties 
described in Deed Book 4056, Page 906, ROHC.  Tax Maps 104-087 and 104-087.01 
as shown on the attached map. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 



 

 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 















No. 615-26 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                   (P.C. NO. 2015-069) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL PERMIT FOR A 
RESIDENTIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR 

PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 8217 AND 8219 
OOLTEWAH-GEORGETOWN ROAD 

 
 
 WHEREAS, MAP Engineers, Spring Creek Investments & Kinsman & Cheryl 
Wright petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission 
to rezone from granting a Special Permit for a Residential Planned Unit Development 
for properties located at 8217 and 8219 Ooltewah-Georgetown Road , and said 
Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, MAP Engineers, Spring Creek Investments & Kinsman & Cheryl 
Wright requested that the County Commission consider said petition and notice has 
been published in a newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that the 
County Commission will hold a public hearing on June 17, 2015, concerning the 
passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such having been held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended granting a Special Permit for a Residential Planned Unit Development 
for properties located at 8217 and 8219 Ooltewah-Georgetown Road.  Two unplatted 
tracts of land located at 8217 and 8219 Ooltewah-Georgetown Road, being the 
properties described in Deed Book 4056, Page 906, ROHC. Tax Maps 104-087 and 
104-087.01 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT 



 

 

FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 















No. 615-26A 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                   (P.C. NO. 2015-069) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL PERMIT FOR A 
RESIDENTIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR 

PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 8217 AND 8219 
OOLTEWAH-GEORGETOWN ROAD 

 
 
 WHEREAS, MAP Engineers, Spring Creek Investments & Kinsman & Cheryl 
Wright petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission 
to rezone from granting a Special Permit for a Residential Planned Unit Development 
for properties located at 8217 and 8219 Ooltewah-Georgetown Road, and said 
Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, MAP Engineers, Spring Creek Investments & Kinsman & Cheryl 
Wright requested that the County Commission consider said petition and notice has 
been published in a newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that the 
County Commission will hold a public hearing on June 17, 2015, concerning the 
passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such having been held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended granting a Special Permit for a Residential Planned Unit Development 
for properties located at 8217 and 8219 Ooltewah-Georgetown Road, subject to: The 
developer will be required to install a north bound, left turn lane on Ooltewah 
Georgetown Road into the new development.  Plans for the turn lane shall be 
prepared by a licensed engineer and submitted to the Hamilton County 
Engineering Department for approval.  Two unplatted tracts of land located at 8217 
and 8219 Ooltewah-Georgetown Road, being the properties described in Deed Book 
4056, Page 906, ROHC. Tax Maps 104-087 and 104-087.01 as shown on the 



 

 

attached map. 
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 















No. 615-27 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF FORD OF MURFREESBORO FOR ONE (1) 
4X4 UTILITY VEHICLE AMOUNTING TO $27,239.00 FOR EMERGENCY SERVICES 
AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) 4X4 utility 

vehicle for Emergency Services; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Ford of Murfreesboro amounting to $27,239.00 was considered 

to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Ford of Murfreesboro for one (1) 4X4 utility vehicle amounting to $27,239.00 
for Emergency Services is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, 
and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 

































No. 615-28 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF ASI COBRA, LLC FOR COBRA 
ADMINISTRATION SERVICES, BEGINNING JULY 1, 2015, THROUGH JUNE 30, 2018, 
WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR THREE (3) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR 
PERIODS, FOR THE HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were received in response to public advertisement for COBRA 

Administration Services for Hamilton County employees; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the proposal from ASI COBRA, LLC was considered to be the lowest and 

best proposal received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the proposal of ASI COBRA, LLC for COBRA Administration Services, beginning July 
1, 2015, through June 30, 2018, with the option to renew for three (3) additional one (1) year 
periods, for the Human Resources Department is hereby accepted, said proposal being the 
lowest and best proposal received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts 
necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 









No. 615-29 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON 
COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTINUATION  CONTRACT  WITH THE TENNESSEE 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH  IN THE AMOUNT OF $116,220.00 TO PROVIDE HEALTH CARE SAFETY 
NET PRIMARY CARE SERVICES TO UNINSURED ADULTS IN HAMILTON COUNTY AT THE 
HOMELESS HEALTH CARE CENTER FOR THE TIME PERIOD JULY 1, 2015 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2016.   
 
 
WHEREAS,  primary care services are needed to treat uninsured adults who are seeking  
   sick or preventive health care; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  the Hamilton County Health Department’s Homeless Health Care Center  
   meets the qualifications for this grant and provides this service to persons  
   in Hamilton County; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  the Tennessee Department of Health has received the authority to   

 distribute increased funds for the provision of these services in Hamilton County.            
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 

that the County Mayor be authorized to sign a continuation contract in the amount of $116,220.00 for the 
provision of primary care services to uninsured adults in Hamilton County at the Homeless Health Care 
Center.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 

























No. 615-30 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE 
CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO ENTER INTO AND 
EXECUTE A CONTINUATION CONTRACT FOR $616,300.00 WITH THE TENNESSEE 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH FOR THE PROVISION OF BIOTERRORISM PREPAREDNESS 
ACTIVITIES FOR THE 12 MONTH TIME PERIOD BEGINNING JULY 1, 2015 – JUNE 30, 2016 
AND TO AMEND THE HOMELAND SECURITY AND HOMELAND SECURITY-STATE APPR 
BUDGETS FOR FY 2016 BY ADDING $79,300.00 TO THE REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE 
BUDGET.  
 
WHEREAS, the overall objective of the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department is to 

protect the public’s health; and, 
 
WHEREAS,     preparedness activities are necessary to achieve this objective; and,  
 
 
WHEREAS, these activities are for the protection and well-being of the citizens of Hamilton 

County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the County Mayor be authorized to sign the attached continuation contract accepting $616,300.00 
in State funds for the purpose of providing Bioterrorism preparedness activities for the time period of 
July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2016 and to amend the FY 2016 revenue and expenditure budget of the 
Homeland Security by adding $75,800.00 and to amend the FY 2016 revenue and expenditure of the 
Homeland State Security -State APPR by adding $3,500.00.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 















































No. 615-31 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AND 
EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH THOMPSON ENGINEERING FOR 
GEOENVIRONMENTAL INSPECTION NECESSARY FOR CONSTRUCTION OF 
THE SALE CREEK VOLUNTEER FIRE HALL HEADQUARTERS FOR AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $167,680.00 OF PREVIOUSLY BUDGETED FUNDS. 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 614-34 was approved by this Legislative Body on June 18, 

2014 approving hourly rates and testing service fees for the 
geoenvironmental services provided by Thompson Engineering; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  the total amount of the contract shall not exceed $167,680.00 without 

approval by the County Commission; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  There are sufficient funds available for this project in the County’s 

line of credit. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the County Mayor is authorized to enter into and execute an 
agreement with Thompson Engineering to provide geoenvironmental 
inspection for the construction of the Sale Creek Volunteer Fire Hall 
Headquarters for an amount not to exceed $167,680.00. 

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT  
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 











No. 615-32 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE “MASTER LIST OF ROADS AND SPEED 
LIMITS” SO AS TO CHANGE THE ROADWAY NAME FOR THE FOLLOWING 
DISTRICT ROAD:  Winnepeg Court to Winnipeg Court. 
 
WHEREAS, Winnipeg Court was incorrectly named Winnepeg Court by Resolution 

Number 305-7; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Winnipeg Court is the roadway name on Plat Book 77 Page 34; and, 
 
WHEREAS, All property owners on this roadway use Winnipeg Court; and, 
 
WHEREAS, This Resolution corrects the roadway name to Winnipeg Court; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

1. Rename Winnepeg Court to Winnipeg Court. 
 

 2.  That the speed limit on said road shall remain as originally accepted and that 
violation of the same, when posted, shall be a misdemeanor and punishable as 
such as provided by the laws of the State. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 615-33 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF J&J CONTRACTORS, INC. FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE DALLAS BAY FIRE HALL #2 RENOVATIONS AND 
ADDITIONS AMOUNTING TO $2,756,200 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS,  bids were received in response to public advertisement for construction of the 

Dallas Bay Fire Hall #2 renovations and additions; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from J&J Contractors, Inc. amounting to $2,756,200 was considered to 

be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of J&J Contractors, Inc. for construction of the Dallas Bay Fire Hall #2 
renovations and additions amounting to $2,756,200 is hereby accepted; said bid being the 
lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts 
necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 









No. 615-34 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

June 17, 2015 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE 
PERIOD OF MAY 1, 2015, THROUGH MAY 31, 2015, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department was authorized to make purchases of petroleum products 
on the open market; and, 

WHEREAS, the following purchases were made between May 1, 2015, through May 31, 2015. 

May 5, 2015, $1,319.40 for 600 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.1990 per 
gallon from Collins Oil Company, Inc.  

May 6, 2015, $16,111.59 for 8,423 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.912809 per gallon 
from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  

May 7, 2015, $14,905.82 for 7,977 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.8686 per gallon from 
Sweetwater Valley Oil Company, Inc.  

May 7, 2015, $14,881.53 for 7,964 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.8686 per gallon from 
Sweetwater Valley Oil Company, Inc.  

May 8, 2015, $15,569.01 for 8,412 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.85081 per gallon from 
Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  

May 15, 2015, $3,148.60 for 1,400 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.2490 per 
gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  

May 18, 2015, $15,058.04 for 7,445 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.022571 per gallon from 
Parman Lubricants.  

May 21, 2015, $14,369.52 for 7,261 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.9790 per gallon from Jat 
Oil and Supply, Inc.  

May 28, 2015, $1,154.62 for 518 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.2290 per 



 

 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 May 28, 2015, $13,416.45 for 7,193 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.865209 per gallon 

from Parman Lubricants. 
 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That the above purchases be ratified in the best interest of Hamilton County, and the County Mayor is 
authorized to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 615-35 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015–2016 AND SETTING 
THE TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2015 FOR HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE. 
 
WHEREAS, the County Board of Commissioners has legal authority to adopt a budget and to levy 

taxes sufficient to fund such budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, in the absence of the exact official tax aggregate, which has not been completed, the 

estimated receipts from the 2015 property tax is based on a total assessed valuation of 
$9,088,206,000 with an allowance for uncollectibles of $262,423,000; and 

 
WHEREAS, the method for determining payments in lieu of taxes by the Electric Power Board is 

based on factors other than property value.  The Electric Power Board is excluded from 
assessed value and its payment in lieu of taxes is fixed at a rate of 53% for the General 
Purpose School Fund and 47% for the County General Fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, it may be necessary to issue revenue anticipation notes to fund the budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS HAMILTON COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

1. That the Budget attached to this resolution and by reference made a part of said 
resolution, for the fiscal year 2015-2016 is hereby adopted. 

 
2. That there is hereby levied on each $100.00 of assessed valuation of taxable 

property in Hamilton County for 2015 a tax levy of the following rates: 
 

General Purpose School Fund 1.3726 
County General Fund:  

  General Purposes 1.3816  
  District Road Purposes 0.0110  
   2.7652  
 
 
 



 

 

3. That the taxes provided in Chapter 387 of the Tennessee Public Acts of 1971, and 
any amendments thereto, known as the “Business Tax Act”, are hereby enacted, 
ordained and levied on the business, business activities, vocations, or occupations 
doing business or exercising a taxable privilege as provided by said Act, in 
Hamilton County, Tennessee, at the rates and in the manner described by the said 
Act.  The proceeds of the privilege taxes levied herein shall be apportioned to the 
County General Fund in total.  It is not the intention of the Hamilton County Board 
of Commissioners, in adopting this particular tax, to affect in any way the 
imposition and collection of any lawful ad valorem tax imposed on personalty or 
real property. 
 

4. That the payments in lieu of taxes paid by the Electric Power Board, or any other 
entity, except the Tennessee Valley Authority, is hereby fixed at a rate of 53% for 
the General Purpose School Fund and 47% for the County General Fund. 

 
5. That the County Mayor and County Clerk are hereby authorized to borrow money 

on revenue anticipation notes, provided such notes are first approved by the 
Director of Local Finance, to pay for the expenses herein authorized until the taxes 
and other revenue for the fiscal year 2015-2016 have been collected, not exceeding 
60% of the appropriations of each individual fund.  The proceeds of loans for each 
individual fund shall be used only to pay the expenses and other requirements of 
the fund for which the loan is made and the loan shall be paid out of revenue of the 
fund for which the money is borrowed.  The notes evidencing the loans authorized 
under this section shall be issued under the authority of the applicable sections of 
Title 9 Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated.  Said notes shall be signed by the 
County Mayor and countersigned by the County Clerk and shall mature and be 
paid in full with renewal no later than June 30, 2016. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 615-36 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING APPROPRIATIONS TO NONPROFIT CHARITABLE AND 
CIVIC ORGANIZATIONS OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2015 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2016. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 Tennessee Code Annotated, authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit 

charitable and civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need 
of funds to carry on their nonprofit work. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS HAMILTON COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED, that the following organizations be funded as follows: 
 

1. That $72,293 be appropriated to the Regional Council of Governments and 
SETDD to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to 
provide funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
2. That $188,548 be appropriated to the Air Pollution Control Bureau to 

promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide 
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
3. That $620,970 be appropriated to the Humane Educational Society to 

promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide 
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
4. That $600,000 be appropriated to the Chamber-Community Economic 

Development to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and 
to provide funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 



5. That $1,500,000 be appropriated to Baroness Erlanger Hospital to promote 
the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide funds for the 
ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
6. That $100,000 be appropriated to the Enterprise Center to promote the 

welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide funds for the 
ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
7. That $105,200 be appropriated to the Chattanooga Area Regional 

Transportation Authority to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton 
County and to provide funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
8. That $50,000 be appropriated to the Urban League to promote the welfare 

of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide funds for the ongoing 
programs of the organization. 

 
9. That $80,865 be appropriated to the Chattanooga African-American 

Museum Building Maintenance to promote the welfare of the citizens of 
Hamilton County and to provide funds for the ongoing programs of the 
organization. 

 
10. That $10,000 be appropriated to the Armed Forces Day Parade to promote 

the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide funds for the 
ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
11. That $48,135 be appropriated to the Hamilton County Hazardous Materials 

Team to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to 
provide funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
12. That $48,965 be appropriated to the Tri-Community Volunteer Fire 

Department to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and 
to provide funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
13. That $67,877 be appropriated to the Dallas Bay Volunteer Fire Department 

to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide 
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
14. That $31,549 be appropriated to the Mowbray Volunteer Fire Department to 

promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide 
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 



15. That $23,375 be appropriated to the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Rescue 
Squad to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to 
provide funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
16. That $103,321 be appropriated to the Highway 58 Volunteer Fire 

Department to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and 
to provide funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
17. That $34,785 be appropriated to the Sequoyah Volunteer Fire Department 

to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide 
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
18. That $48,412 be appropriated to the Walden’s Ridge Emergency Services to 

promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide 
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
19. That $59,168 be appropriated to the Sale Creek Volunteer Fire Department 

to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide 
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
20. That $20,481 be appropriated to the Hamilton County Marine Rescue to 

promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide 
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
21. That $17,992 be appropriated to the Hamilton County Stars to promote the 

welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide funds for the 
ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
22. That $20,896 be appropriated to the Flattop Volunteer Fire Department to 

promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide 
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all appropriations enumerated in items 1 through 22 
above are made subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organizations to which funds are 
appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of 
Finance a copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions 
and the proposed use of the County’s funds in accordance with rules 
promulgated by the Comptroller of the Treasury, Chapter 0380-2-7.  Such 
annual report shall be prepared and certified by the chief financial officer of 



 

 

such nonprofit organization in accordance with Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 
 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and 
civic organizations in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the 
general welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton 

County in providing these funds to the above named organizations to be 
fully in compliance with Chapter 0380-2-7 of the Rules of the Comptroller 
of the Treasury, and Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and 
any and all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to 
nonprofit charitable and civic organizations and so this is made subject to 
compliance with any and all of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 615-37 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE EXPENDITURE OF SIX MILLION TWO HUNDRED 
FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($6,250,000), TO COMPLETE HAMILTON COUNTY’S 
OBLIGATION TO THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF CHATTANOOGA FOR THE 
EXPANSION OF THE VOLKSWAGEN AUTOMOBILE ASSEMBLY PLANT AND TO AMEND 
THE GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURE BUDGET ACCORDINGLY. 
 
WHEREAS,  the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners, through Resolution 814-30, approved 

the payment of twenty six million two hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($26,250,000) 
for the expansion of the Volkswagen automobile assembly plant; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners, through Resolution 814-30, previously 

approved the amendment of the General Fund expenditure budget of $20,000,000 for 
this project; and 

 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County’s remaining obligation of six million two hundred fifty thousand 

($6,250,000) under the Memorandum of Understanding was reserved in the General 
Fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, the remaining amount of six million two hundred fifty thousand ($6,250,000), as stated 

in the Memorandum of Understanding, may be made available on/after July 1, 2015. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the General Fund expenditure budget be amended by $6,250,000, to cover the County’s 
remaining obligation to the Industrial Development Board of Chattanooga for the expansion of the 
Volkswagen automobile assembly plant. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 615-38 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN A 
GRANT AGREEMENT WITH A TERM ENDING JUNE 30, 2016 WITH THE 
TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE 
ABUSE SERVICES AND AMENDING THE RECOVERY COURT FUND BY 
ADDING $425,000 TO THE REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE BUDGETS 
 

 
WHEREAS, the State of Tennessee Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services is 

awarding Hamilton County a $425,000 grant to support the Hamilton County Recovery 
Court from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016; and, 

 
WHEREAS, this grant will be used to fund program operations and provide treatment services for 

carefully selected participants in a therapeutic setting; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the program can reduce recidivism and help participants become productive members 

of society; and, 
 
WHEREAS, no match is required; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 

The County Mayor is hereby authorized to sign a contract, copy available on request, with the 
Tennessee Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services for continuation 
support of the Hamilton County Drug Court, and the Drug Court Fund is amended by adding 
$425,000 to Revenues and Expenditures. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 615-39 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH A TERM 
OF JULY 1, 2015 TO JUNE 30, 2016 WITH MS. ELAINE KELLY TO SERVE AS COORDINATOR OF THE 
HAMILTON COUNTY RECOVERY COURT PROGRAM 
 
 
WHEREAS, under Resolution No.706-31, Hamilton County established a Drug Court program; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Purchasing Department issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for 

contract services for administering the Drug Court Program in September, 2006; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Elaine Kelly was the only respondent but was determined to be well-qualified on the basis 

of education and experience; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Kelly has successfully served as Recovery Court Coordinator since the program began in 

2006; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County wishes to extend the contract for Ms. Kelly’s services in an annualized amount of 

$91,482.00, and 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
The County Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an agreement (copy available on request) with Ms. Elaine 
Kelly to coordinate and manage the Hamilton County Recovery Court Program for the period of July 1, 2015 to 
June 30, 2016. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT AT AND FROM ITS PASSAGE, 
THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 615-40 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH 
A TERM OF JULY 1, 2015 TO JUNE 30, 2016 WITH MR. JEFF S. HILL TO SERVE AS CASE 
MANAGER FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY RECOVERY COURT PROGRAM 
 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County has received funding from the State of Tennessee for the 

continuation of the Recovery Court program; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the program offers a sentencing alternative for certain selected offenders; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Jeff S. Hill has successfully carried out his duties as a Case Manager for the 

program; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County wishes to extend the contract for the services of Mr. Jeff S. Hill in the 

amount of $56,167.00 per year, and 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
The County Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an agreement (copy available on request) with Mr. 
Jeff S. Hill to serve as a Case Manager for the Hamilton County Recovery Court Program for the 
period of July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT AT AND FROM ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 615-42 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT 
WITH A TERM OF JULY 1, 2015 TO JUNE 30, 2016 WITH MR. JOHN ROBERT 
COOPER TO SERVE AS A CASE MANAGER FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY 
RECOVERY COURT PROGRAM 
 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County has received funding from the State of Tennessee for the 

continuation of the Recovery Court program; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the program offers a sentencing alternative for certain selected offenders; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. John Robert Cooper has successfully carried out his duties as a Case 

Manager for the program; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County wishes to extend the contract for Mr. John Robert Cooper’s services 

in the amount of $45,787 per year, and 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
The County Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an agreement (copy available on request) 
with Mr. John Robert Cooper to serve as a Case Manager for the Hamilton County Recovery 
Court Program for the period of July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT AT AND 
FROM ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 615-43 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 17, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SUBMIT A 
JOINT APPLICATION WITH THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA FOR A 2015 
JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT AND APPROVING THE USE OF THIS 
GRANT BY THE HAMILTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 

WHEREAS, the U. S. Department of Justice guidelines require a joint submission with the 
City of Chattanooga for a 2015 Justice Assistance Grant (JAG); and, 

 
WHEREAS, the 2014 JAG will be divided with the City of Chattanooga receiving $84,951 

and Hamilton County receiving $39,914; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office will use the 2015 JAG toward the purchase of laptop 

computers for patrol vehicles and ancillary training equipment; and, 
 
WHEREAS, no match is required; and 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED THAT: 
 

The County Mayor is authorized to sign a Memorandum of Understanding and 
submit a joint application with the City of Chattanooga for the 2015 JAG, and 
the Sheriff’s Office plan to use the grant toward the purchase of laptop 
computers and ancillary training equipment.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 17, 2015 

  
Date 

 


	6-17-15 Public Agenda Revised - 3
	615-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - May 27, 2015 _1639_05-27-15 Agenda
	615-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - May 27 2015 _1638_05-27-15 Recessed
	615-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - June 3, 2015_1640_06-03-15 Regular
	615-_S_Report_Criminal Court Clerk's Reports March and April  2015_1607_Criminal Court Clerk March and April 2015
	615-_S_Report_Order of Designation Planning Commission - Todd Leamon June 8, 2015_1612_Order of Designation planning commission Todd Leamon 6 17 15
	615-17_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_1636_06-17-15
	615-17_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_1636_06-17-15A
	615-18_R_Reappointment and Appointment Community Advisory Broard
	615-18_S_Reappointment and Appointment Community Advisory Broard
	615-19_R_Appointment(s)_Reappointment of Gary Neil to the Hamilton County Board of Electrical Examiners._1625_ReAppointment  Hamilton Co Brd of Electrical Examiners
	615-19_S_Appointment(s)_Reappointment of Gary Neil to the Hamilton County Board of Electrical Examiners._1625_Gary W. Neil Bio
	615-20_R_Christie Jordan_FY 2015 Board of Education Budget Amendmentszoej@_1613_STATE OF TENNESSEE
	615-20_S_Christie Jordan_FY 2015 Board of Education Budget Amendmentszoej@_1613_1225_001
	615-21_R_Gary Waters_Appliances for East Brainerd Elementary School_1624_RES. APPLIANCES FOR EAST BRAINERD ELEM. SCHOOL
	615-21_S_Gary Waters_Appliances for East Brainerd Elementary School_1624_Appliances for East Brainerd Elementary School
	615-22_R_Gary Waters_Televisions and wall mounts for East Brainerd Elementary School_1631_RES. TELEVISIONS & WALL MOUNTS FOR EAST BRAINERD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
	615-22_S_Gary Waters_Televisions and wall mounts for East Brainerd Elementary School_1631_Televisions & Wall Mounts for East Brainerd Elementary School
	615-23_R_Zoning_Zoning_1627_2015-066
	615-23_S_Zoning_Zoning_1627_0502_001
	615-24A_R_Zoning_Zoning_1628_068-A
	615-24A_S_Zoning_Zoning_1628_0503_001
	615-24B_R_Zoning_Zoning_1629_068B
	615-24B_S_Zoning_Zoning_1629_0503_001
	615-26_R_Zoning_Zoning_1630_069
	615-26_S_Zoning_Zoning_1630_0504_001
	615-26A_R_Zoning
	615-26A_S_Zoning
	615-27_R_Don Allen_One 4X4 Utility Vehicle_1610_RES. 4x4 UTILITY VEHICLE
	615-27_S_Don Allen_One 4X4 Utility Vehicle_1610_(1) 4X4 Utility Vehicle
	615-28_R_Alecia Poe_COBRA Administrative Services_1633_RES. COBRA ADMINISTRATION SERVICES 6-17-15
	615-28_S_Alecia Poe_COBRA Administrative Services_1633_COBRA Administration Services
	615-29_R_Becky Barnes_Primary Care Services for Uninsured Adults in Hamilton County_1622_2015 Resolution Safety Net Primary Care
	615-29_S_Becky Barnes_Primary Care Services for Uninsured Adults in Hamilton County_1622_2015 Primary Care Safety Net Contract
	615-30_R_Becky Barnes_Bioterrorism Planning Activities_1637_Bioterrorism Resolution 2015
	615-30_S_Becky Barnes_Bioterrorism Planning Activities_1637_Bioterrorism Contract 2015
	615-31_R_Todd Leamon_GeoEnvironmental inspection services for Sale Creek Fire Hall_1614_615-31resolution
	615-31_S_Todd Leamon_GeoEnvironmental inspection services for Sale Creek Fire Hall_1614_Sale Creek Fire Hall Special Inspections_ConstructionInspection
	615-32_R_Todd Leamon_Road Name change from Winnepeg Court to Winnipeg Court_1620_WinnepegCourt_Resolution
	615-33_R_Todd Leamon_Construction of the Dallas Bay Fire Hall #2_1632_RES. DALLAS BAY FIRE HALL #2
	615-33_S_Todd Leamon_Construction of the Dallas Bay Fire Hall #2_1632_Dallas Bay Fire Hall #2 Renovations & Additions
	615-34_R_Albert Kiser_Fuel May 2015_1626_Fuel Resolution May 2015
	615-34_S_Albert Kiser_Fuel May 2015_1626_May 2015 docs
	615-35_R_Albert Kiser_Resolution to adopt a budget for FY 2016_1634_Budget Res Template
	615-36_R_Albert Kiser_Funding for Nonprofit Charitable and Civic Organizations for Fiscal Year 2016._1635_Charitable Org Res Template
	615-37_R_Albert Kiser_Authorization for payment of Hamilton County's remaining obligation to the IDB of Chattanooga for the expansion of the VW automobile assembly plant_1641_Volkswagen
	615-38_R_Dan Saieed_Hamilton County Recovery Court_1619_Resolution Drug Court State 2015 1
	615-39_R_Dan Saieed_Hamilton County Recovery Court_1615_Resolution Drug Court  Kelly 2015 1
	615-40_R_Dan Saieed_Hamilton County Recovery Court_1616_Resolution Drug Court Hill 2015 1
	615-42_R_Dan Saieed_Hamilton County Recovery Court_1618_Resolution Drug Court Cooper 2015 1
	615-43_R_Dan Saieed_2015 Justice Assistance Grant_1621_Resolution JAG Grant 2015 1

